

Journal of the House

FORTY-SECOND DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
TOPEKA, KS, Tuesday, March 15, 2011, 11:00 a.m.

The House met pursuant to adjournment with Speaker O'Neal in the chair.

The roll was called with 121 members present.

Reps. Fund, Kiegerl and Schwab were excused on verified illness.

Rep. Peterson was excused on excused absence by the Speaker.

Prayer by guest chaplain, Bishop David Fowles, Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day Saints, Leavenworth, guest of Rep. O'Brien:

Our Father in Heaven, we come before thee this day and express our gratitude for our bounteous blessings. We thank thee for our lives, our liberty and the freedoms we enjoy. We thank thee for this great country and this State of Kansas in which we live and pray that Thou will bless those that lead us. Bless them with wisdom and understanding, courage and humility.

We are grateful for our servicemen and women who serve around the world, who serve selflessly—bless them with physical, mental and spiritual strength. And please bless and comfort their families who sacrifice so much.

We are especially mindful this day of the great tragedy that has recently occurred in Japan. Father, we pray for thy tender mercies to be upon all those who are suffering in so many ways. Bless them to find peace in Thee, even in the midst of chaos and confusion. May we all, as thy sons and daughters, unite in the hope of brighter days ahead.

Now, Father, we pray for those gathered in this Chamber. We express our gratitude for those who serve so faithfully and well. Bless them to always remember those whom they serve as they carry out their various duties and responsibilities. Bless them with wisdom and goodness. And we ask that thou would bless their families for the many sacrifices that they make.

We are ever so grateful for Thy love, Thy care and Thy compassion. Bless us as we go forward that we might do all that we can to follow Thee and to do Thy will.

In the name of Jesus Christ, Amen.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Rep. McLeland.

Kansas Trivia Question – Hector, a ghost town in Greeley County, was named after what friend of Horace Greeley?

Answer: Greeley's dog

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

There being no objection, the following remarks by Rep. Hill are spread upon the journal:

Today we have the opportunity to affirm and raise awareness of the great work that our Small Business Development Centers are doing and to recognize the outstanding 2010 emerging and existing small businesses of the year. These fifteen businesses represent economic vitality and human vibrancy in the communities they serve. These businesses have achieved major accomplishments: established growing businesses, demonstrated vision, problem solving and exemplary corporate citizenship. Entrepreneurship is one of the most powerful drivers of growth and prosperity in our Kansas economy. It is the primary source of job creation and economic competitiveness. Challenging economic times have proven to be good times to launch a new business. In 2010 there were over two thousand businesses in Kansas that received KSBDC services including our honorees today. It is the priority of KSBDC to reach as many potential entrepreneurs as possible and provide tools and services for Kansans in all parts of the state. The entrepreneurial spirit and energy represented by those we recognize today provides a source of encouragement and optimism as together we welcome the opportunities of economic recovery.

This afternoon from 3:00 to 5:00 at the Dillon House there will be a program and awards ceremony recognizing the businesses we are pleased to welcome to our House Chamber this morning.

Mr. Speaker, I would like to introduce these outstanding entrepreneurs: Emerging businesses: from Representative Arpke's District – Thiessen-Elise Salon; from Representatives Keuther's District – Say Cheez Photo Booth; from Representative Feuerborn's District – Audio Video Concepts; from Representative Meigs' District – The Next Step; from Representative Mesa's District – Accelacare Physical Therapy; from Representative Phelps' District – Couture for Men; from Representative Mast's District – The New Breck.

Existing businesses: from Representative Victor's District – Intake Studio; from Representative Fund's District – Lifetime Eye Care; from Representative Otto's District – TLC Greenhouse; from Representative Sloan's District – Printpop.com; from Representative Rubin's District – Weather or Not, Inc.; from Representative Hoffman's District – Fleener Funeral Home; from Representative Bill Wolf's District – T&C Manufacturing; and last but not least from Representative Hill's District – Granada Coffee Company.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

HB 2391, AN ACT concerning anemometer towers; relating to required markings; penalties, by Committee on Taxation.

HB 2392, AN ACT concerning setoff against certain debtors; relating to federal department of the treasury, agreements, procedure and fees; amending K.S.A. 75-6204 and K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 75-6202 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Taxation.

REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: **HB 2390**.

Judiciary: **HB 2389**.

COMMUNICATIONS FROM STATE OFFICERS

From Ray Roberts, Secretary, Kansas Department of Corrections, in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 60-4117, report for the Kansas Department of Corrections State Forfeiture Fund for December 1, 2009 through December 1, 2010.

From Valdenia Winn, Chairperson, Capitol Preservation Committee, pursuant to K.S.A. 75-2269, 2010 Annual Report of the Capitol Preservation committee.

The complete reports are kept on file and open for inspection in the office of the Chief Clerk.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Objection was made to **SB 212** appearing on the Consent Calendar; the bill was placed on the calendar under the heading of General Orders.

No objection was made to **HCR 5020** appearing on the Consent Calendar for the first day.

On motion of Rep. Siegfried, the House resolved into the Committee of the Whole, with Rep. Hayzlett in the chair.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Rep. Hayzlett, Committee of the Whole report, as follows, was adopted.

Recommended that **HCR 5023** be adopted.

Committee report to **HB 2371** be adopted; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee report to **HB 2374** be adopted; also, on motion of Rep. Rhoades be amended on page 4, following line 23, by inserting the following:

“Sec. 8.

KANSAS REAL ESTATE COMMISSION

(a) On the effective date of this act, the expenditure limitation established for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, by the state finance council on the real estate fee fund of the Kansas real estate commission is hereby decreased from \$1,123,206 to \$1,028,342.”;

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 21, in line 2, by subtracting “\$33,341” from the dollar amount and by adjusting the dollar amount in line 2 accordingly; following line 33, by inserting the following:

“(e) On the effective date of this act, of the \$8,890,257 appropriated for the above

agency for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, by section 83(a) of chapter 165 of the 2010 Session Laws of Kansas from the state general fund in the operating expenditures account, the sum of \$393 is hereby lapsed.”;

On page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking all after “June 30, 2011,” and inserting “June 30, 2012, and June 30, 2013, for state agencies;”;

Also, on motion of Rep. Sloan to amend, the motion did not prevail.

Also, roll call was demanded on motion of Rep. Ward to amend **HB 2374** on page 2, in line 7, by striking lines 7 through line 40; on page 3, in line 1, by striking lines 1 through line 13.”;

On roll call, the vote was: Yeas 49; Nays 68; Present but not voting: 0; Absent or not voting: 8.

Yeas: Ballard, Bollier, Brookens, Burroughs, Calloway, Carlin, Colloton, Davis, Dillmore, Feuerborn, Finney, Flaharty, Frownfelter, D. Gatewood, S. Gatewood, Grant, Henderson, Henry, Hill, Hineman, Kelly, Kuether, Lane, Loganbill, Mah, McCray-Miller, Meier, Moxley, Otto, Pauls, Phelps, Pottorff, Roth, Ruiz, Seiwert, Slattery, Sloan, Spalding, Swanson, Tietze, Trimmer, Victors, Ward, Wetta, Williams, Winn, K. Wolf, Wolfe Moore, Worley.

Nays: Alford, Arpke, Aurand, Billinger, Boman, Bowers, Brown, Brunk, Burgess, Carlson, Cassidy, Collins, Crum, DeGraaf, Denning, Donohoe, Fawcett, Garber, Goico, Gonzalez, Goodman, Gordon, Grange, Grosserode, Hayzlett, Hermanson, Hildabrand, Hoffman, C. Holmes, M. Holmes, Howell, Huebert, Johnson, Kelley, Kerschen, Kinzer, Kleeb, Knox, Landwehr, Mast, McLeland, Meigs, Mesa, Montgomery, Mosier, O'Brien, O'Hara, O'Neal, Osterman, Patton, Peck, Powell, Prescott, Proehl, Rhoades, Rubin, Ryckman, Scapa, Schroeder, Schwartz, Shultz, Siegfried, Smith, Suellentrop, Tyson, Vickrey, Weber, B. Wolf.

Present but not voting: None.

Absent or not voting: Bethell, Bruchman, Fund, Gregory, Hedke, Kiegerl, Peterson, Schwab.

The motion of Rep. Ward did not prevail; and **HB 2374** be passed as amended.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Insurance** recommends **SB 15** be passed and, because the committee is of the opinion that the bill is of a noncontroversial nature, be placed on the consent calendar.

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **HB 2335** be amended on page 3, in line 4, by striking "(a)"; in line 34, by striking "Furthermore, it is the intent of"; by striking all in lines 35 through 37; in line 38, by striking "where the state law offers greater protections."; and the bill be passed as amended

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT CHANGE

Speaker O'Neal announced the appointment of Rep. McCray-Miller as a member of Committee on Appropriations to replace Rep. Victors on March 16, 2011, only.

On motion of Rep. Siegfried, the House recessed until 5:00 p.m.

LATE AFTERNOON SESSION

The House met pursuant to recess with Speaker O'Neal in the chair.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Committee on **Judiciary** recommends **SB 97** be amended on page 4, in line 24, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 7, in line 13, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 10, in line 31, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 15, in line 37, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 18, in line 19, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 19, in line 36, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 22, in line 7, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,"; in line 18, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 23, in line 4, before "the" by inserting "on and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 24, in line 1, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 26, in line 21, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 28, in line 29, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 30, in line 29, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 31, in line 26, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,"; in line 39, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 33, in line 39, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,";

On page 35, in line 11, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,"; in line 37, before "The" by inserting "On and after the effective date of this act through June 30, 2012,"; following line 39, by inserting:

"Sec. 19. K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 20-3002 is hereby amended to read as follows: 20-3002. (a) On and after January 1, 2008, through December 31, ~~2011~~ 2012, the court of appeals shall consist of 13 judges whose positions shall be numbered one to 13. On and after January 1, ~~2012~~ 2013, the court of appeals shall consist of 14 judges whose positions shall be numbered one to 14. Judges of the court of appeals shall possess the qualifications prescribed by law for justices of the supreme court.

(b) Judges of the court of appeals shall be selected in the manner provided by K.S.A. 20-3003 through 20-3010, and amendments thereto. Each judge of the court of

appeals shall receive an annual salary in the amount prescribed by law. No judge of the court of appeals may receive additional compensation for official services performed by the judge. Each such judge shall be reimbursed for expenses incurred in the performance of such judge's official duties in the same manner and to the same extent justices of the supreme court are reimbursed for such expenses.

(c) The supreme court may assign a judge of the court of appeals to serve temporarily on the supreme court.

(d) Any additional court of appeals judge position created by this section shall be considered a position created by the supreme court and not a civil appointment to a state office pursuant to K.S.A. 46-234, and amendments thereto.;

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

On page 36, in line 2, after "8-2110," by inserting "20-3002.,";

On page 1, in the title, in line 4, after "8-2110," by inserting "20-3002.,"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **HB 2381** be passed.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **SB 1** be amended by substituting a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 1," as follows:

"HOUSE Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 1

By Committee on Taxation

"AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to income tax rates, adjustment, procedure and requirements; sales and compensating use tax rates and distribution; amending K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 79-32,110, 79-3603, 79-3620, 79-3703 and 79-3710 and repealing the existing sections.,"; and the substitute bill be passed.

(**H. Sub. for SB 1** was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **SB 61** be amended on page 1, following line 26, by inserting:

"Sec. 2. K.S.A. 79-32,141 is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-32,141. (a) The director may allocate gross income, deductions, credits, or allowances between two or more organizations, trades or businesses (whether or not incorporated, or organized in the United States or affiliated) which are owned or controlled directly or indirectly by the same interests, if the director determines such allocation is necessary to prevent evasion of taxes or to clearly reflect income of the organizations, trades or businesses.

(b) Commencing with the taxable year which commences after December 31, 2012, and all taxable years thereafter, subject to the limitations provided in this subsection, credits claimed by a corporation that is a member of a unitary group filing a combined report pursuant to the provisions of subsection (e) of K.S.A. 79-32,160a, and amendments thereto, including any carryforward credits, may be applied against the tax liability of any member or members of such group in such combined report. For the following tax years, limits on the credits then available to a company that is a member of a unitary group under this subsection are as follows: (1) For the taxable year which commences after December 31, 2012, not more than 20% of such credits subject to unitary treatments; (2) for the taxable year which commences after December 31, 2013, not more than 25% of such credits subject to unitary treatment; (3) for the taxable year which commences after December 31, 2014, not more than 33% of such credits subject to unitary treatment; and (4) for the taxable year which commences after December 31, 2015, not more than 50% of such credits subject to unitary treatment.

Sec. 3. K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 79-32,160a is hereby amended to read as follows: 79-

32,160a. (a) For taxable years commencing after December 31, 1999, any taxpayer who shall invest in a qualified business facility, as defined in subsection (b) of K.S.A. 79-32,154, and amendments thereto, and effective for tax years commencing after December 31, 2010, located in an area other than a metropolitan county as defined in either K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 74-50,114 or 74-50,211, and amendments thereto, and also meets the definition of a business in subsection (b) of K.S.A. 74-50,114, and amendments thereto, shall be allowed a credit for such investment, in an amount determined under subsection (b) or (c), as the case requires, against the tax imposed by the Kansas income tax act or where the qualified business facility is the principal place from which the trade or business of the taxpayer is directed or managed and the facility has facilitated the creation of at least 20 new full-time positions, against the premium tax or privilege fees imposed pursuant to K.S.A. 40-252, and amendments thereto, or as measured by the net income of financial institutions imposed pursuant to article 11 of chapter 79, ~~article 11~~ of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, for the taxable year during which commencement of commercial operations, as defined in subsection (f) of K.S.A. 79-32,154, and amendments thereto, occurs at such qualified business facility. In the case of a taxpayer who meets the definition of a manufacturing business in subsection (d) of K.S.A. 74-50,114, and amendments thereto, no credit shall be allowed under this section unless the number of qualified business facility employees, as determined under subsection (d) of K.S.A. 79-32,154, and amendments thereto, engaged or maintained in employment at the qualified business facility as a direct result of the investment by the taxpayer for the taxable year for which the credit is claimed equals or exceeds two. In the case of a taxpayer who meets the definition of a nonmanufacturing business in subsection (f) of K.S.A. 74-50,114, and amendments thereto, no credit shall be allowed under this section unless the number of qualified business facility employees, as determined under subsection (d) of K.S.A. 79-32,154, and amendments thereto, engaged or maintained in employment at the qualified business facility as a direct result of the investment by the taxpayer for the taxable year for which the credit is claimed equals or exceeds five. Where an employee performs services for the taxpayer outside the qualified business facility, the employee shall be considered engaged or maintained in employment at the qualified business facility if: (1) The employee's service performed outside the qualified business facility is incidental to the employee's service inside the qualified business facility; or (2) the base of operations or, the place from which the service is directed or controlled, is at the qualified business facility.

(b) The credit allowed by subsection (a) for any taxpayer who invests in a qualified business facility which is located in a designated nonmetropolitan region established under K.S.A. 74-50,116, and amendments thereto, on or after the effective date of this act, shall be a portion of the income tax imposed by the Kansas income tax act on the taxpayer's Kansas taxable income, the premium tax or privilege fees imposed pursuant to K.S.A. 40-252, and amendments thereto, or the privilege tax as measured by the net income of financial institutions imposed pursuant to article 11 of chapter 79, ~~article 11~~ of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, for the taxable year for which such credit is allowed, but in the case where the qualified business facility investment was made prior to January 1, 1996, not in excess of 50% of such tax. Such portion shall be an amount equal to the sum of the following:

(1) Two thousand five hundred dollars for each qualified business facility employee determined under K.S.A. 79-32,154, and amendments thereto; plus

(2) one thousand dollars for each \$100,000, or major fraction thereof, which shall be deemed to be 51% or more, in qualified business facility investment, as determined under K.S.A. 79-32,154, and amendments thereto.

(c) The credit allowed by subsection (a) for any taxpayer who invests in a qualified business facility, which is not located in a nonmetropolitan region established under K.S.A. 74-50,116, and amendments thereto, and effective for tax years commencing after December 31, 2010, located in an area other than a metropolitan county as defined in either K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 74-50,114 or 74-50,211, and amendments thereto, and which also meets the definition of business in subsection (b) of K.S.A. 74-50,114, and amendments thereto, on or after the effective date of this act, shall be a portion of the income tax imposed by the Kansas income tax act on the taxpayer's Kansas taxable income, the premium tax or privilege fees imposed pursuant to K.S.A. 40-252, and amendments thereto, or the privilege tax as measured by the net income of financial institutions imposed pursuant to article 11 of chapter 79, ~~article 11~~ of the Kansas Statutes Annotated, for the taxable year for which such credit is allowed, but in the case where the qualified business facility investment was made prior to January 1, 1996, not in excess of 50% of such tax. Such portion shall be an amount equal to the sum of the following:

(1) One thousand five hundred dollars for each qualified business facility employee as determined under K.S.A. 79-32,154, and amendments thereto; and

(2) one thousand dollars for each \$100,000, or major fraction thereof, which shall be deemed to be 51% or more, in qualified business facility investment as determined under K.S.A. 79-32,154, and amendments thereto.

(d) The credit allowed by subsection (a) for each qualified business facility employee and for qualified business facility investment shall be a one-time credit. If the amount of the credit allowed under subsection (a) exceeds the tax imposed by the Kansas income tax act on the taxpayer's Kansas taxable income, the premium tax and privilege fees imposed pursuant to K.S.A. 40-252, and amendments thereto, or the privilege tax as measured by the net income of financial institutions imposed pursuant to article 11 of chapter 79, ~~article 11~~ of the Kansas Statutes Annotated for the taxable year, or in the case where the qualified business facility investment was made prior to January 1, 1996, 50% of such tax imposed upon the amount which exceeds such tax liability or such portion thereof may be carried over for credit in the same manner in the succeeding taxable years until the total amount of such credit is used. Except that, before the credit is allowed, a taxpayer, who meets the definition of a manufacturing business in subsection (d) of K.S.A. 74-50,114, and amendments thereto, shall recertify annually that the net increase of a minimum of two qualified business facility employees has continued to be maintained and a taxpayer, who meets the definition of a nonmanufacturing business in subsection (f) of K.S.A. 74-50,114, and amendments thereto, shall recertify annually that the net increase of a minimum of five qualified business employees has continued to be maintained.

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this section, any taxpayer qualified and certified under the provisions of K.S.A. 74-50,131, and amendments thereto; which, prior to making a commitment to invest in a qualified Kansas business, has filed a certificate of intent to invest in a qualified business facility in a form satisfactory to the secretary of commerce; and that has received written approval from the secretary of commerce for participation and has participated, during the tax year for which the

exemption is claimed, in the Kansas industrial training, Kansas industrial retraining or the state of Kansas investments in lifelong learning program or is eligible for the tax credit established in K.S.A. 74-50,132, and amendments thereto, shall be entitled to a credit in an amount equal to 10% of that portion of the qualified business facility investment which exceeds \$50,000 in lieu of the credit provided in subsection (b)(2) or (c)(2) without regard to the number of qualified business facility employees engaged or maintained in employment at the qualified business facility. The credit allowed by this subsection shall be a one-time credit. If the amount thereof exceeds the tax imposed by the Kansas income tax act on the taxpayer's Kansas taxable income or the premium tax or privilege fees imposed pursuant to K.S.A. 40-252, and amendments thereto, or the privilege tax as measured by net income of financial institutions imposed pursuant to article 11 of chapter 79, article 11 of the Kansas Statutes Annotated for the taxable year, the amount thereof which exceeds such tax liability may be carried forward for credit in the succeeding taxable year or years until the total amount of the tax credit is used, except that no such tax credit shall be carried forward for deduction after the ~~10th~~ 16th taxable year succeeding the taxable year in which such credit initially was claimed ~~and no carry forward shall be allowed for deduction in any succeeding taxable year unless the taxpayer continued to be qualified and was recertified for such succeeding taxable year pursuant to K.S.A. 74-50,131, and amendments thereto, and no carryforward shall be allowed for deduction in any succeeding taxable year unless the taxpayer certifies under oath that the taxpayer continues to meet the requirements of K.S.A. 74-50,131, and amendments thereto, and this act. In no event shall any credit allowed under this section that expired during any taxable year prior to the taxable year commencing January 1, 2011, be revived under the provisions of this act.~~

(f) For tax years commencing after December 31, 2005, any taxpayer claiming credits pursuant to this section, as a condition for claiming and qualifying for such credits, shall provide information pursuant to K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 79-32,243, and amendments thereto, as part of the tax return in which such credits are claimed. Such credits shall not be denied solely on the basis of the contents of the information provided by the taxpayer pursuant to K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 79-32,243, and amendments thereto.

(g) This section and K.S.A. 79-32,160b, and amendments thereto, shall be part of and supplemental to the job expansion and investment credit act of 1976 ~~and acts amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto, and amendments thereto.~~;

And by renumbering sections accordingly;

Also on page 1, in line 27, after "2." by inserting "K.S.A. 79-32,141 and"; also in line 27, by striking "is " and inserting "and 79-32,160a are";

Also on page 1, in the title, in line 2, by striking the first semicolon and inserting a comma; Also in line 2, after the second semicolon, by inserting "allocation of credits, unitary group; high performance incentive program;"; also in line 2, after "amending" by inserting "K.S.A. 79-32,141 and"; in line 3, after "74-50,208" by inserting "and 79-32,160a"; also in line 3, by striking "section" and inserting "sections"; and the bill be passed as amended.

Committee on **Taxation** recommends **SB 196** be amended by substituting a new bill to be designated as "House Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 196," as follows:

"HOUSE Substitute for SENATE BILL NO. 196

By Committee on Taxation

"AN ACT concerning taxation; relating to IMPACT program; income tax deductions, expensing of investment expenditures; promoting employment across Kansas act, qualifications for benefits; income tax credits; sales tax exemptions; creating job creation program fund, administration and expenditures; amending K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 74-50,104, 74-50,106, 74-50,107, 74-50,109, 74-50,110, 74-50,111, 74-50,210, 74-50,211, 74-50,212, 74-50,213, 79-32,160a, 79-32,206 and 79-3606 and repealing the existing sections; also repealing K.S.A. 2010 Supp. 74-50,151 and 74-50,152."; and the substitute bill be passed.

(H. Sub. for SB 196 was thereupon introduced and read by title.)

REPORT ON ENROLLED RESOLUTIONS

Sub. HR 6009 reported correctly enrolled and properly signed on March 15, 2011.

On motion of Rep. Siegfried, the House adjourned until 11:00 a.m., Wednesday, March 16, 2011.

CHARLENE SWANSON, *Journal Clerk.*

SUSAN W. KANNARR, *Chief Clerk.*

